
AGENDA

Committee Administrator:     Democratic Services Officer  (01609 767015)

Monday, 20 January 2020

Dear Councillor

NOTICE OF MEETING

Meeting AUDIT, GOVERNANCE AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Date Tuesday, 28 January 2020

Time 9.30 am

Venue Main Committee Room, Civic Centre, Stone Cross, Rotary Way, Northallerton, DL6 2UU

Yours sincerely

J. Ives.
Dr Justin Ives
Chief Executive

To: Councillors Councillors
N A Knapton (Chairman)
P Atkin
G W Dadd
D B Elders (Vice-Chairman)

R W Hudson
M Taylor
P Thompson

Other Members of the Council for information 

Public Document Pack



AGENDA

Page No

1. MINUTES 

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 22 October 2019 (AGS.14 to AGS.23), 
previously circulated.

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

3. REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT - REVIEW OF ACTIVITY 1 - 4

Report of the Director of Law and Governance (Monitoring Officer)

4. AMENDMENTS TO MEMBER CODE OF CONDUCT AND MEMBER REGISTER OF 
INTEREST FORM 

5 - 14

Report of the Director of Law and Governance (Monitoring Officer)

Relevant Ward(s): All Wards

5. AMENDMENTS TO THE CONSTITUTION 15 - 16

Report of the Director of Law and Governance (Monitoring Officer)

Relevant Ward(s): All Wards

6. SECOND INTERNAL AUDIT AND COUNTER FRAUD PROGRESS REPORT 2019/20 17 - 30

Report of the Director of Finance and Commercial (S151 Officer)

Relevant Ward(s): All Wards

7. STATUTORY AUDITOR - QUARTERLY BRIEFING 31 - 52

Report of the Director of Finance and Commercial (S151 Officer)

Relevant Ward(s): All Wards

8. STATUTORY AUDITOR - ANNUAL CERTIFICATION OF CLAIMS AND RETURNS 
2018/19 

53 - 62

Report of the Director of Finance and Commercial (S151 Officer)

Relevant Ward(s): All Wards

9. MATTERS OF URGENCY 

Any other business of which not less than 24 hours prior notice, preferably in writing, 
has been given to the Chief Executive and which the Chairman decides is urgent.



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Report To: Audit, Governance and Standards Committee 

From: 

Subject: 

28 January 2019 

Director of Law and Governance (Monitoring Officer) 

REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT – REVIEW OF ACTIVITY 
AND REVIEW OF POLICY  

All Wards 

1.0 PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:  

1.1 The Council, like many public authorities, is governed by the Regulation of Investigatory 
Powers Act 2000 (RIPA).  This Act ensures that public authorities comply with their 
obligations under the Human Rights Act when undertaking investigations which may 
interfere with the rights of individuals.  The Act introduces safeguards on activities such as 
surveillance undertaken by public bodies.   

1.2 The Audit, Governance and Standards Committee has been given responsibility for RIPA 
matters.  This involves the Committee in reviewing the Council’s Policy Statement from time 
to time and receiving quarterly reports on any activities which have been authorised under 
RIPA.  

2.0 RIPA ACTIVITIES: 

2.1 Although RIPA covers a number of activities undertaken by investigatory bodies 
(e.g., phone tapping by the Security Services and Police) its principle use in respect of 
Local Authorities relates to:- 

• covert surveillance, and
• covert human intelligence sources.

2.2 Covert surveillance covers the monitoring, observing or listening to persons, their 
movements, conversations or other activities and communications.  It may be conducted 
with or without the assistance of a surveillance device and includes the recording of any 
information obtained.  RIPA is most relevant to the Council’s activities in effecting 
enforcement procedures such as the investigation and prosecution of offences.  This would 
not normally include the initial investigation of contraventions such as planning enforcement 
or noise investigations, but would normally involve the later stages where criminal activity 
was a possibility.  Although this could technically include breaches of Planning Enforcement 
Notices, breaches of Environmental Health Notices, fraud, etc., the Council’s use of the 
powers has been very limited in recent years.  For example, the Council has not used 
authorisations under the Act in the last three years.   

2.3 From 1 November 2012 the Council is only able to use RIPA for directed surveillance for 
potential criminal activity with a possible penalty of at least six months imprisonment.  This 
means that the Council can no longer use the procedure for low-level offences such as 
littering and dog control.  For serious offences the Council needs approval from a 
magistrate before it can use directed surveillance.  

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



2.4 Another use of the Act is for the Police to authorise use of the Council’s CCTV system for 
specific operations (general use of CCTV is not covered by the Act because this is not 
covert surveillance).   The Police authorise themselves to use the Council’s CCTV system 
for covert surveillance on approximately two occasions per year.  

  
2.5 Covert human intelligence sources relate to the use of a third party to gather information.  

For example, this could be an informer or someone used to undertake test purchases.  This 
is not an activity that the Council engages in at all.  The Council also needs the approval of 
a magistrate to carry out this activity.   

 
2.6 The only area in which the Council might very occasionally involve itself where RIPA might 

be relevant is covert surveillance.  It is necessary for the Council therefore to follow the 
legislation and the requirements of Government Codes of Practice.  Most of the 
requirements of the Code are dealt with at an Officer level.  However, Members are 
expected to approve a Policy on RIPA and to have some involvement in the monitoring of 
how the Council implements RIPA requirements. 

 
3.0 MONITORING OF RIPA ACTIVITY: 
 
3.1 Codes of Practice on RIPA recommend that quarterly reports are made to Members on 

RIPA activity.  Consideration of such reports has been delegated to the Audit, Governance 
and Standards Committee.  This report therefore constitutes one of those reports and is 
intended to cover the period 23 October 2019 to 21 January 2020.  There were no 
authorisations during this period.  It is recommended that the Committee note the position.   

 
4.0 REVIEW OF POLICY STATEMENT:  
 
4.1 The Council’s current Policy Statement on the use of powers under RIPA is attached as an 

Annex to this report.  There are no changes recommended to this Policy.    
 
5.0 RECOMMENDATION: 
 
5.1 It is recommended that:-  
 

(1) the current Policy on the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act be approved;  
 
(2) it be noted that no RIPA authorisations were made by the Council during the period 

23 October 2019 to 21 January 2020. 
 
 

 
GARY NELSON 
DIRECTOR OF LAW AND GOVERNANCE (MONITORING OFFICER) 
 
Background papers:  HDC RIPA Register of Authorisations 
 
Author ref:   GN 
 
Contact:   01609 767012 

  

Page 2



ANNEX  

 
 
 

REGULATION OF SURVEILLANCE ACTIVITIES 
POLICY STATEMENT  

 
The Council acknowledges that surveillance plays a necessary part in a number of its functions, on 
a day-to-day basis.  To meet its legal obligations, the Council will comply with the Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers Act 2000 and in particular:- 
 
• follow the principles of a Code of Practice reflecting the principles of the Covert Surveillance 

Code of Practice issued by the Home Office; 
 
• make sure the Code of Practice is adopted for each Council function; 
 
• make the Code readily available to officers, Members and customers; 
 
• arrange for a central record of authorisations; 
 
• make sure the authorisation process is followed for covert surveillance; 
 
• ensure that surveillance is lawful under the Human Rights rules; 
 
• provide guidance and training for Members and officers at an appropriate level; 
 
• ensure there are designated officers within each Directorate, with responsibility for 

implementing the rules for surveillance activities; 
 
• ensure the Director of Law and Governance monitors compliance with the rules for surveillance 

activities. 
 
Monitoring Framework: 
 
Monitoring compliance with these policy statements will include the following:- 
 
• audits by the Director of Law and Governance; 
 
• cross-audits by practitioners of other Sections; 
 
• reports to Management Team and Audit, Governance and Standards Committee on the level of 

RIPA authorisations; 
 
• checking examples of authorisations;   
 
• use of other accepted methodology for monitoring RIPA compliance, as standards emerge. 
 
January 2020 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Report To: Audit, Governance and Standards Committee 

From: 

Subject: 

28 January 2020 

Director of Law and Governance (Monitoring Officer) 

AMENDMENTS TO MEMBER CODE OF CONDUCT AND MEMBER REGISTER 
OF INTERESTS FORM 

All Wards 

1.0 PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:  

1.1 This report seeks approval to amendments to the Council’s Member Code of Conduct and 
Members’ Register of Interests Form.      

1.2 Under the Localism Act 2011 the Council is required to have in place a code which deals 
with the conduct that is expected of Members.  The Council’s current Code of Member 
Conduct satisfies that requirement.   

1.3 The Committee on Standards in Public Life (“CSPL”), which is the body responsible for 
reviewing ethical standards in local government, has recently concluded a review into the 
standards regime under the Localism Act 2011, in order to satisfy itself that the current 
standards framework is conducive to promoting and maintaining the standards expected of 
Members by the general public.       

1.4 The CSPL recognised that the vast majority of councillors wanted to maintain the highest 
standards of conduct in their own authority.  However, the Committee identified some 
specific areas of concern including a small minority of councillors engaging in behaviour 
which constituted bullying and harassment, or other highly disruptive behaviour.      

1.5 Following its review the CSPL recommended changes to the current standards regime.  A 
number of the recommendations will require legislative changes and, as such, are beyond 
the scope of this report.  However, the CSPL also made fifteen ‘best practice’ 
recommendations which do not require changes to legislation and which it expects local 
authorities to implement.  The CSPL intends to review the adoption of these best practice 
recommendations by local authorities from 2020.       

1.6 The Council’s current standards regime and procedures already comply with the majority of 
the Committee’s best practice recommendations.  However, two of the fifteen 
recommendations require amendments to the Council’s Code of Conduct to ensure the 
Code continues to meet best practice, namely prohibitions on bullying and harassment 
(including a definition of those terms supplemented by a list of examples of prohibited 
behaviours), and a requirement for Members to cooperate with any standards investigation. 
It is also considered an opportune moment, given the Council’s Public Sector Equality Duty, 
to amend the Code of Conduct to require Members not do anything which may cause the 
Council to breach any equality enactment.    

1.7 An amended copy of the Code of Member Conduct (showing the proposed changes in red) 
is appended to this report for approval at ‘Annex A’. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



1.8. The report also proposes amendments to the Members’ Register of Interests Form.   
Currently when they take up office Members are provided with two documents which are to 
be read together, namely the Register of Interests Form and an accompanying Guidance 
Note which explains the nature of the interests to be disclosed.  In order to assist Members 
it is proposed that the two documents are merged so that the information is captured in only 
one document.  Attached for approval at ‘Annex B’ is such a document.      

                       
2.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
2.1 The Localism Act 2011 requires the District Council to have in place a Code of Member 

Conduct.      
 
3.0 EQUALITY/DIVERSITY ISSUES: 
 
3.1 These have been considered and are addressed in the proposed amendment to the Code 

of Member Conduct.   
 
4.0 RECOMMENDATION:   
 
4.1 The Committee is asked to approve and to recommend to Council that:  

 (1)  the amended Code of Member Conduct appended at ‘Annex A’ be approved and  
  adopted; and 

 (2) the amended Register of Interests Form appended at ‘Annex B’ be approved and 
  adopted. 

 
GARY NELSON 
DIRECTOR OF LAW AND GOVERANANCE (MONITORING OFFICER) 
 
Background papers: Local Government Ethical Standards – A Review by the Committee 

on Standards in Public Life (2019)  
Author ref: GN 
Contact: Gary Nelson 
  Director of Law and Governance (Monitoring Officer) 
 Direct Line No (01609) 767012 

Page 6



Annex A 

 
 

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR THE MEMBERS OF 
HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
Hambleton District Council (“the Authority”) has adopted the following Code for the purposes of 
Section 27(2) of the Localism Act 2011 dealing with the conduct that is expected of Members of the 
Authority when they are acting in that capacity. 
 
The Code is intended to be consistent with the following seven principles, and should be read in 
the light of those principles, namely that Authority Members will act with selflessness, integrity, 
objectivity, accountability, openness, honesty and leadership. 
 

1. You must treat others with respect. 
 

2. You must not do anything which may cause the Authority to breach any equality 
enactment.   

 
3. You are entitled to Freedom of Expression.  However, you must not bully, harass or 

intimidate any person, or attempt to bully, harass or intimidate any person.   
 
Bullying includes “offensive, intimidating, malicious or insulting words and behaviour 
and/or an abuse or misuse of power through means that undermine, humiliate, 
denigrate or injure the recipient”.   
 
Harassment is defined in the Equality Act 2010 as “unwanted conduct related to a 
relevant protected characteristic”, which has the purpose or effect of violating an 
individual’s dignity or “creating an intimidating, hostile, degrading, humiliating or 
offensive environment” for that individual. 
 
Bullying and Harassment may more commonly arise from persistent behaviour, rather 
than one-off instances, although depending on the behaviour complained of one-off 
instances may constitute a breach of this Code. 
 
Examples of bullying include: 

• spreading malicious rumours, or insulting someone by words or behaviour; 
• ridiculing or demeaning someone, picking on them or setting them up to fail; 
• exclusion or victimisation; 
• unfair treatment; 
• overbearing supervision or other misuse of power or position; 
• making threats or comments about job security without foundation; 
• unwelcome sexual advances – e.g. touching, standing too close, asking for 

sexual favours, making decisions on the basis of sexual advances being 
accepted or rejected and displaying offensive material;  

• deliberately undermining a competent worker by overloading and constant 
criticism; 

• preventing individuals progressing by intentionally blocking promotion or 
training opportunities  

 
4. You must not do anything which compromises or is likely to compromise the impartiality 

of anyone who works for or on behalf of the Authority. 
 

5. You must not conduct yourself in a manner which could reasonably be regarded as 
bringing the Authority, or your office as a Member of the Authority, into disrepute. 

Page 7



 

 
6. You must not use or attempt to use your position as a Member improperly to confer on 

or secure for yourself or any other person any advantage or disadvantage and this 
includes discussing with other Members any matter in which you have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest. 

 
7. If you are in receipt of any gift or hospitality which is attributable to your membership of 

the Authority and is of a value in excess of £25, or any offer of any such gift or 
hospitality, you must disclose this to the Monitoring Officer; and you must decline to 
accept any such gift or hospitality which could reasonably be perceived as creating an 
obligation upon the Authority, or upon yourself as a Member of the Authority. 

 
8. You must not knowingly prevent, or attempt to prevent, another person from gaining 

access to information to which they are entitled by law. 
 

9. You must not disclose information which is given to you in confidence, or information 
which you believe or ought reasonably to be aware is of a confidential nature, unless: 

 
9.1 You have the consent of a person authorised to give it; or 
 
9.2 You are required by law to do so; or 
 
9.3 The disclosure is made to a third party for the purpose of obtaining professional 

advice, provided that the third party agrees not to disclose the information to any 
other person; or 

 
9.4 The disclosure is reasonable, in the public interest, made in good faith, and made 

in compliance with the reasonable requirements of the Authority. 
 

10. Where, as a Member of the Authority, you have been involved in making any decision 
which is subsequently subject to scrutiny within the Authority, you must not take part in 
the scrutiny process.  In this paragraph, “scrutiny” means the formal examination by the 
Authority, a Committee of the Authority, or a group of people including Members of the 
Authority, of a policy or decision previously approved or taken by or on behalf of the 
Authority, in order to reach a view on its rectitude, efficacy, performance or value for 
money.  For the purposes of this paragraph, you do not take part in a scrutiny process if 
you simply offer evidence or opinion to the scrutiny body, and do not participate in its 
decision. 

 
11.1 Subject to paragraph 12, you must register in the Authority’s Register of Members’ 

Interests information regarding your personal interests.  In this Code of Conduct “your 
personal interests” means any disclosable pecuniary interest as defined by statutory 
regulations in force from time to time. 

  
11.2 You must register information regarding your personal interests (and those of your 

spouse or civil partner or persons living with you as if a spouse or civil partner) by giving 
written notice on the relevant form to the Monitoring Officer before the end of 28 days 
beginning with the day you become a Member, or within 28 days following any changes 
to your personal interests.    

 
12. Where you consider that disclosure of the details of any of your disclosable pecuniary 

interests could lead to you, or a person connected with you, being subject to violence or 
intimidation, you may so inform the Monitoring Officer; and if the Monitoring Officer 
agrees, a note will be made in the Register to the effect that you have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, details of which are withheld under Section 32 of the Localism Act 
2011. 

 

Page 8



 

13. You must comply with any Standing Order or Procedure Rules adopted by the Authority 
which requires Members to leave the room during any meeting at which a matter in 
which they have a disclosable pecuniary interest is being discussed. 

 
14. Where a complaint under this Code has been made against you as a Member you shall: 
  
 14.1   cooperate with the Monitoring Officer during the assessment of the complaint; 
 
 14.2   cooperate with and attend any meeting of the Standards Hearings Panel at which 

      the complaint is considered. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 9



Annex B 

 
 

REGISTRATION OF FINANCIAL AND 
PERSONAL INTERESTS 

 
LOCALISM ACT 2011 

LOCAL CODE OF MEMBER CONDUCT  
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
Under the Localism Act 2011 you are required to register certain interests with the District 
Council’s Monitoring Officer.  The interests include those of yourself, your spouse or civil partner 
(or persons living with you as if a spouse or civil partner).  The register is available to the public. 
 
The registerable interests are set out in the legislation.  These guidance notes aim to assist you in 
determining what interests you have to register to comply with the legislation. 
 
THE REGISTERABLE INTERESTS 
 
The interests which are registerable are specified in the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012, to which Members are referred when completing this 
Register of Interests.  Set out below is an explanation of the nature of those interests. 
 
Name of Councillor:  (In block capitals please) 
 
 
 
I hereby notify you of my interests (and those of my spouse, civil partner or persons living with me 
as if a spouse or civil partner) as required by the Code of Member Conduct as follows:-  
 
1. Employment or Business  
 
A short description of any job or business carried on by you including any office, trade, profession 
or vocation carried on for profit or gain including the name of your employer.  You are required to 
declare any employment or business even if it is not within the Council's area.  You are not 
required to declare what income you receive. 
 

 
2. Sponsorship in connection with duties as a Member:  
 
The name of any person or body (other than the relevant authority) that has helped you with 
expenses associated with your election or your duties as a Member.  Sponsorship includes another 
person paying expenses which you would otherwise have to pay, and includes any payment or 
financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.  Any payments and statutory allowances received from a local authority 
do not need to be declared. 

Page 10



- 2 - 

 

 
3. Contracts with the Council  
 
Brief descriptions of the nature and length of any contracts for goods, services or works which you 
have with the Council, either directly or as a partner in a firm or as a director of a company or if the 
contract is with a body which you have declared under the heading "Securities".  This includes 
contracts with the Council even if the works, goods or services are provided to third parties, e.g.  a 
voluntary organisation.  It also includes contracts where goods, services or works are provided by 
the Council to your firm or other body.  Only contracts which have not been fully discharged need 
to be notified.  Once a contract ends it can be removed. 
 

 
 
4. Land in the District: 
 
Any land, or buildings in the area of the Council in which you have a beneficial interest (freehold or 
leasehold or a short tenancy), either of your own, or jointly with one or more other people.  You 
have a beneficial interest in land if, for example, you own, you rent, you are entitled to the 
proceeds of, or you may, under a trust, become entitled to the proceeds of that land.  This includes 
your home address if you own, lease or rent it.  Excluded is land where you are a trustee for other 
people or where you are an executor or administrator of the estate of someone who has died and 
have no interest in the estate. 
 
If you own land outside the area of the Council you do not have to declare it but if you receive an 
income from the land then in the ‘Employment or Business section’ the property letting business 
should be declared, but it is not necessary to state where the property is.   
 
"Land" for this purpose includes houses, buildings, and the interest of a mortgagee.  It excludes 
drainage rights, rights of way, and other rights which do not entitle you (whether alone or jointly 
with others) to occupy the land or to draw income from it.   
 
The requirement to register the interest of a mortgagee does not mean that if you have a mortgage 
on your house you have to declare it.  ‘Mortgagee’ is the person who lends money to another on 
the security of a mortgage.  If you are a mortgagee, you need to give the address or description of 
the relevant property, not the fact of the mortgage, or the name of the borrower.   
 
The information required is the address of the land or (where, for example, it is land without any 
buildings on it) a brief description good enough to identify the location.  If necessary please attach 
a map showing the location of the land or list the Ordnance Survey field numbers which apply. 
 

 

Page 11



- 3 - 

 
5. Licences  
 
Any licences that you have either on your own or jointly with others, or any permission that you 
have to occupy land (for example, as an allotment or for fishing or shooting) where the licence, or 
permission, will last for a month or longer.   
 
The information required is the address of the land or (where, for example, it is land without any 
buildings on it) a brief description good enough to identify the location.  If necessary please attach 
a map showing the location of the land or list the Ordnance Survey field numbers which apply. 
 

 
 
6. Corporate Tenancies  
 
The address of any land or buildings rented from the Council by you or a body in which you have a 
beneficial interest. 
 
The information required is the address of the land or where, for example, it is land without any 
buildings on it, a brief description good enough to identify the location.  If necessary please attach 
a map showing the location of the land or list the Ordnance Survey field numbers which apply. 
 

 
 
7. Securities  
 
Securities means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective 
investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (as 
amended) and other securities of any description other than money deposited with a building 
society.   
 
The name of any person or other body who has a place of business or land in the Council's area 
and in whom you have a beneficial interest in a class of securities of that person or body that 
exceeds the nominal value of £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share capital 
(whichever is the lower), eg if the company has 100 £1 shares and you have one share you need 
to declare the interest.  The value of shares is the face value (the value recorded on the share 
certificate) not the current market value.   
 
For example, you bought 10,000 £1.50 shares (face value) in 1999.  The market value at that time 
was £3.00 each, so the total paid was £30,000, but the shares are now worth £45,000.  The 
nominal value of the shares would be £15,000 (10,000 x £1.50).  Therefore, you would not be 
obliged to enter the shares in the register of interests, even though the current market value of the 
shares is £45,000.  It is not necessary to declare the size or nature of the holding, simply the name 
of the company or other body.   
 
You have a beneficial interest in a type of share if, for example, you own, you are entitled to the 
proceeds of, or you may, through a trust or will, become entitled to the proceeds of, that type of 
share.  You do not need to register any such interest that you have as trustee.   
 

Page 12



- 4 - 

If you know the companies in which your PEP, ISA or pension fund has invested and:  
 
• those companies have a place of business or land in the Council's area; and  
• your beneficial interest in the investment is greater than the levels indicated above,  
 
then you need to register that interest.  You are only required to register interests which are known 
to you.  You are not required to investigate the investment portfolio of any PEP, ISA or pension 
scheme to which you may belong. 
 

 

Signed:  

Name:  

Dated:  

 
 
To: Mr G Nelson - Monitoring Officer  
 Hambleton District Council  
 Civic Centre  
 Stone Cross 
 NORTHALLERTON 
 North Yorkshire  
 DL6 2UU  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



- 5 - 

Privacy Statement 
 
The information you provide on this form will be processed in accordance with the obligations 
contained in the Localism Act 2011. 
 
Sensitive Information  
 
If you consider that the availability for inspection by the public of information relating to any of your 
interests creates, or is likely to create, a serious risk that you or a person who lives with you may 
be subjected to violence or intimidation, you may apply to the Monitoring Officer for permission not 
to include that sensitive information on the Register of Members’ Interests.  This would apply if you 
are employed in an area of sensitive employment, such as certain types of scientific research.  If 
the Monitoring Officer agrees that the information is sensitive information there is no need to 
include the sensitive information on the register of interests, although the existence of an interest, 
but not the details of the sensitive information, must still be declared at meetings if business 
relating to or affecting the interest is being considered at the meeting.  If you think that some of 
your information is sensitive please write to the Monitoring Officer. 
 
Removal of Registrations 
 
When an interest no longer exists it can be removed from the Register.  You should contact  
Louise Hancock, Democratic Services Officer, Tel: 01609 767015, email: 
louise.hancock@hambleton.gov.uk 
 
When you cease to be a Councillor, all of the registration can be removed.  You should contact 
Louise Hancock, Democratic Services Officer, Tel: 01609 767015, email: 
louise.hancock@hambleton.gov.uk) 

Page 14

mailto:louise.hancock@hambleton.gov.uk
mailto:louise.hancock@hambleton.gov.uk


HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Report To: Audit, Governance and Standards Committee 

From: 

Subject: 

28 January 2020 

Director of Law and Governance (Monitoring Officer) 

AMENDMENTS TO THE CONSTITUTION 
All Wards 

1.0 PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:  

1.1 As part of its Terms of Reference the Committee has a responsibility for monitoring, 
reviewing and recommending changes to the Council’s Constitution.  The Leader of the 
Council has asked the Committee to consider certain amendments to the Constitution 
which it is hoped would take effect from the Annual Meeting of Council in May 2020, subject 
to approval by Full Council. 

1.2 In summary, the recommended changes are to increase the number of Cabinet Members 
from six to a maximum of eight (inclusive of the Leader). 

2.0  CABINET: 

2.1 The Constitution currently requires that the Executive (Cabinet) be made up of the Leader 
together with five other Councillors appointed to the Cabinet by the Leader.  This is 
contained in Article 7 of the Constitution.  An increase in the number of Cabinet Members to 
a maximum of eight (including the Leader) would provide the Cabinet with greater capacity 
to oversee the Council Plan and the delivery of the Council’s increasingly challenging key 
projects. 

3.0   FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 

3.1 The increase in Cabinet Members will result in an increase in Special Responsibility 
Allowances.  Should the Leader choose to appoint two new Cabinet Members this will 
result in additional Allowances of £20,874.  There may also be some additional mileage 
expenses arising from the appointments. 

4.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: 

4.1   Appointments to Cabinet are made by the Leader of the Council. 

5.0 RECOMMENDATION:  

5.1 The Committee is asked to agree and to recommend to Council the amendments to the 
Constitution as set out in paragraph 1.2 of this report. 

GARY NELSON 
DIRECTOR OF LAW AND GOVERNANCE 

Background papers: Council’s Constitution 
Author ref: GN 
Contact: Gary Nelson 

Director of Law and Governance (Monitoring Officer) 
Direct Line No (01609) 767012 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report To: Audit, Governance and Standards Committee  
  28 January 2020 
 
From: Director of Finance and Commercial (s151 Officer) 
 
Subject: SECOND INTERNAL AUDIT AND COUNTER FRAUD PROGRESS REPORT 

2019/20 
All Wards 

 
 
1.0 PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND: 
 
1.1 The provision of Internal Audit is a statutory requirement (Accounts & Audit Regulations 

2015). The council has formalised its arrangements for internal audit within the Audit 
Charter. Internal Audit work is undertaken by Veritau who carries out work in accordance 
with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).  

 
1.2 The Audit and Governance Committee approved the internal audit and counter fraud plans 

for 2019/20 at its meeting held on the 26 March 2019. The purpose of this report is to 
inform Members of the progress made to date in delivering internal audit and counter fraud 
work.   

 
2.0 THE REPORT 
 
2.1 In the period since the last report to this committee (covering 1 October to 15 December 

2019) two internal audit reports on Repairs and Maintenance at Leisure Centres and 
Homelessness have been completed. One report, on Section 106 Agreements, is currently 
at draft stage. Timings have been agreed with officers for completing all of the remaining 
2019/20 audits. We are on target to complete all audits and issue all draft reports by the 
end of April 2020. Further information on internal audit progress is included in annex 1 

 
2.2 It is important that agreed actions are fully implemented by managers, following an internal 

audit review. The internal audit team carries out follow-up work throughout the year of 
previously agreed actions and escalates any issues that have not been addressed, to 
senior managers. Where necessary, the issues will also be brought to the attention of this 
committee. There are currently no matters to bring to the attention of members.  

 
2.3 Counter fraud work has been undertaken in accordance with the approved plan.  The team 

have achieved £12,115 savings against a target of £16,000 in the year to date.  Annex 2 
provides a summary of the work undertaken so far in 2019/20 and outcomes to date. 

 
3.0 LINK TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 
 
3.1 The work of internal audit supports the council’s overall aims and priorities by promoting 

probity, integrity and honesty and by helping support the council to become a more 
effective organisation.  

 
4.0 RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
4.1 There are no risks associated with this report. 
 
 

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



 
5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
5.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report. 
 
6.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
6.1 There are no legal implications associated with the recommendations in the report. 
 
7.0 EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES: 
 
7.1 There are no equalities or diversity issues associated with the report. 
 
8.0 RECOMMENDATIONS: 
  
8.1 It is recommended that members note the work undertaken by internal audit and the 

counter fraud team in the year to date. 
 
 
 
 
LOUISE BRANFORD WHITE 
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND COMMERCIAL (s151 OFFICER) 
 
 
Background papers:  None 
     
Author ref:  SC/JD 
 
Contacts:  Stuart Cutts; Assistant Director – Internal Audit; Veritau Group 
  Stuart.Cutts@veritau.co.uk 
 

Jonathan Dodsworth; Assistant Director – Counter Fraud; 
 Veritau Group 

  Jonathan.Dodsworth@veritau.co.uk 
 
 

Page 18

mailto:Stuart.Cutts@veritau.co.uk
mailto:Jonathan.Dodsworth@veritau.co.uk


Annex 1 
 

 
 
 
 

Hambleton District Council 
 

Internal Audit Progress Report 2019/20 
 

Period to 15 December 2019 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
Assistant Director – Internal Audit: Stuart Cutts 
Head of Internal Audit:   Max Thomas 
  
Circulation List:  Members of the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee 

Director of Finance and Commercial (s151 Officer) 
 
Date:     28 January 2020 
 
 
 

 
 

 
  

Page 19



 
 

 
Background 

 
1 The work of internal audit is governed by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 

and the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). In accordance with the 
PSIAS, the Head of Internal Audit is required to report, to ‘those charged with 
governance’ progress against the internal audit plan agreed by the Committee and 
to identify any emerging issues which need to be brought to the attention of the 
Committee.   

 
2 Members of this Committee approved the Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20 at their 

meeting on the 26 March 2019.  This report summarises the progress made to date 
in delivering the agreed programme of work. 

 
3 This is the second Internal Audit progress report to be received by the Audit, 

Governance and Standards Committee in 2019/20. This report updates the 
Committee on the 2019/20 work completed between 1 October 2019 and 15 
December 2019. 

 
Internal Audit work completed 
  

4 In the period between 1 October and 15 December 2019 two internal audit reports 
on Repairs and Maintenance at Leisure Centres and Homelessness have been 
completed. One report (on Section 106 Agreements) is also at draft stage.  

 
5 Timings have been agreed with officers for all remaining 2019/20 audits. We are on 

target to have completed all audits and issued all draft reports by the end of April 
2019. We will work with officers to seek to ensure all reports are finalised by the end 
of May 2019. Further information is included in Appendix A. 

 
6 Information on the findings from the completed 2019/20 audits is included in 

Appendix B. 
 

Audit Opinions 
 
7 For most reports we provide an overall opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness 

of the controls under review. The opinion given is based on an assessment of the 
risks associated with any weaknesses in controls identified. We also apply a priority 
to all actions agreed with management. Details of the definitions used are included 
in Appendix C. 

 
Wider Internal Audit work 

 
8 In addition to undertaking assurance reviews, Veritau officers are involved in a 

number of other areas relevant to corporate matters: 
 

• Support to the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee; this is mainly 
ongoing through our attendance at meetings of the Committee and the 
provision of advice to Members.  
 

Page 20



 
 

• Ongoing support to management and officers; we meet regularly with 
management to provide advice on a range of specific business and internal 
control issues. These relationships help to provide real time feedback on areas 
of importance to the Council.   

 
• Financial assessments;  this work involves supporting the assurance process 

by using financial reports obtained from Experian (Credit Rating Agency) to 
assess the financial standing of potential contractors.  
 

• Follow up of previous audit recommendations; it is important agreed 
actions are regularly and formally followed up. This helps to provide assurance 
to management and Members that control weaknesses have been properly 
addressed. We have followed up agreed actions either as part of our ongoing 
audit work, or by separate review. We currently have no matters to report as a 
result of our follow up work. 
 

• Risk Management; Veritau advise on the Council’s risk management 
processes.  
 

• Investigations; We perform special or ad-hoc reviews or investigations into 
specific issues.  

 
 
Stuart Cutts 
Assistant Director – Internal Audit 
Veritau 
 
 
28 January 2020 
  

Page 21



 
 

Table of 2019/20 audit assignments to 15 December 2019  Appendix A 
Audit Status  Assurance Level  Audit Committee 
 
Director of Finance and Commercial 
(s151 Officer) 

   

 
Revenues and Benefits 

   

Benefits In Progress   
Revenues 
 

In Progress   

Corporate Finance    
Payroll Not Started   
Creditors Not Started   
Sundry Debtors In Progress   
Income: Fees, Charges and Collection In Progress   
    
Performance and Information Technology    
Risk Management In Progress   
Project Management Deferred -  
Digitalisation Not Started   
ICT – Cloud Based Applications 
 

In Progress   

Director of Economy and Planning    
Disabled Facilities Grants In Progress   
Section 106 Agreements Draft Report   
Homelessness Final Report High Assurance January 2020 
Economic Development 
 

Not Started   

Director of Leisure and Environment    
Repairs and Maintenance at Leisure Centres Final Report Limited Assurance January 2020 
Flexible Working In Progress   
Community Safety and Safer Hambleton Hub 
 

Not Started   

Director of Law and Governance    
New starters 
 

Final Report Reasonable Assurance October 2019 

Projects    
Assurance Mapping In Progress   
Commercial Initiatives Not started   
    
Follow-Ups 
 

Ongoing   

Page 22



 
 

 
Summary of Key Issues from audits completed to 15 December 2019; not previously reported to Committee             Appendix B 
 

System/Area Opinion Area Reviewed Date Issued Comments Management Actions Agreed 

Repairs and 
Maintenance 
at Leisure 
Centres 

Limited 
Assurance 

We reviewed repairs and 
maintenance at Leisure 
Centres to ensure the 
following. 

• Works are identified and 
carried out in a timely 
manner. 

• Works are procured in 
line with the council’s 
policy. 

• Appropriate risk 
assessments are 
performed for works 
completed by 
contractors.   

• Monitoring of works 
performed by contractors 
is completed in a timely 
manner and recorded 
accurately.  

• Annual monitoring of 
contractors health and 
safety competence and 
performance is 
completed. 

October 
2019 

Strengths: 
Repairs and maintenance work was identified and 
carried out in a timely manner in the vast majority 
of cases.  
 
Expenditure on reactive repair works and planned 
maintenance was consistent and proportionate 
year on year, across all Leisure Centres for the 3 
year period we reviewed. 
 
Key areas for Improvement: 
Reactive repair works were not always procured 
in line with council policy. Over a three year period 
expenditure with the top three suppliers that the 
Council did not have a contract with totalled 
£137k.  
 
Of the 44 contractors used for planned 
maintenance during 2018/19, 10 had a contract 
with the council but were not included on the 
Contract Register. The internal processes used to 
monitor the completion of planned maintenance 
works were inconsistent and not kept up to date. 
 
Authorisation to work on-site and risk assessment 
forms were not always completed for reactive 
repair works at Leisure Centres.  
 
Leisure Centre Managers and Duty Officers are 
not always able to accurately confirm works have 
been performed in line with expected health and 
safety performance or to pre-agreed quality levels. 
 
Some contractors who were not on the approved 
Health and Safety list were being used for work.  

Officers have assessed the regular 
contractors used in leisure and a 
HDC contract has been drafted for 
each of those that required a 
contract.  
 
Updated paperwork and processes 
for on-site risk assessments for 
health and safety, and planned 
maintenance will be introduced.  
 
These actions were planned to be 
completed by the end of November 
2019. We will include follow up of 
these actions as part of our follow up 
work in 2020.  
 
A comprehensive review of HDC 
Contract Management arrangements 
will be carried out by Design and 
Maintenance to ensure appropriate 
systems are in place and adhered to. 
This review will ensure that the 
arrangements are fit for purpose and 
can be practically applied. This 
review is planned to be completed by 
the end of March 2020.  

P
age 23



 
 

System/Area Opinion Area Reviewed Date Issued Comments Management Actions Agreed 

Homelessness High 
Assurance 

The purpose of this audit was 
to provide assurance to 
management that procedures 
and controls within the 
system ensure that: 

• the council takes action 
to prevent 
homelessness; action is 
appropriate to each 
individual case; and the 
actions taken are 
recorded 

• Homelessness statistics 
produced by the council 
are reliable and accurate. 

 

November 
2019 

Strengths: 
The team were complying with the relevant 
legislation (Homeless Reduction Act) and were 
making appropriate decisions.   
 
Advice had been given tailored to each 
individual’s situation. Of the 20 cases reviewed, 
16 had received a timely assessment.  For those 
4 cases that had not received an assessment, 
there was a valid reason. 
 
After a completed assessment, a Personalised 
Housing Plan (PHP) is created for the individual.  
For those cases we reviewed no issues were 
identified. The PHP’s were appropriate, fully 
completed, detailed and formally agreed and 
signed.    
 
On a quarterly basis the council reports 
performance statistics to the Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government.  
 
The Council system has a function to generate 
internal reports for performance and management 
information.  Some recent developments, 
including system training, has led to 
improvements in reporting information.  
 
Areas for Improvement: 
No areas to report.  

- 
 

 
  

P
age 24



 
 

Appendix C 
 

Audit Opinions and Priorities for Actions 
 
 

Audit Opinions 
Audit work is based on sampling transactions to test the operation of systems. It cannot guarantee the elimination of fraud or error. Our 
opinion is based on the risks we identify at the time of the audit. 
Our overall audit opinion is based on 5 grades of opinion, as set out below. 

Opinion Assessment of internal control 
High Assurance Overall, very good management of risk. An effective control environment appears to be in operation. 

Substantial Assurance Overall, good management of risk with few weaknesses identified.  An effective control environment is in operation 
but there is scope for further improvement in the areas identified. 

Reasonable 
Assurance  

Overall, satisfactory management of risk with a number of weaknesses identified.  An acceptable control 
environment is in operation but there are a number of improvements that could be made. 

Limited Assurance Overall, poor management of risk with significant control weaknesses in key areas and major improvements required 
before an effective control environment will be in operation. 

No Assurance Overall, there is a fundamental failure in control and risks are not being effectively managed.  A number of key areas 
require substantial improvement to protect the system from error and abuse. 

 
Priorities for Actions 
Priority 1 A fundamental system weakness, which presents unacceptable risk to the system objectives and requires urgent attention by 

management 

Priority 2 A significant system weakness, whose impact or frequency presents risks to the system objectives, which needs to be 
addressed by management. 

Priority 3 The system objectives are not exposed to significant risk, but the issue merits attention by management. 
  
  
 
 

P
age 25



Annex 2 
 

 
 

 

 
Hambleton District Council 

 
Counter Fraud Progress Report  

2019/20 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
Assistant Director – Counter Fraud: Jonathan Dodsworth 
Head of Internal Audit:    Max Thomas 
  
Circulation List: Members of the Audit, Governance & Standards Committee 
 Director of Finance and Commercial (s151 Officer) 

 
Date:  28 January 2020 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 26



 
Background 

 
1 Fraud is significant risk to the public sector.  Annual losses are estimated to exceed 

£40 billion in the United Kingdom.   
 
2 Councils are encouraged to prevent, detect and deter fraud in order to safeguard 

public finances.   
 
3 Veritau are engaged to deliver a corporate fraud service for Hambleton District 

Council.  A corporate fraud service aims to prevent, detect and deter fraud and 
related criminality affecting an organisation.  Veritau deliver counter fraud services 
to the majority of councils in the North Yorkshire area as well as local housing 
associations and other public sector bodies. 

 
Counter Fraud Performance 2019/20 

 
4 Up to 19 December 2019, the fraud team achieved £12.2k in savings for the council 

as a result of investigative work.  There are currently 21 ongoing investigations.  A 
summary of counter fraud activity is included in the tables below.

Page 27



 
COUNTER FRAUD ACTIVITY 2019/20 
 
The tables below shows the total number of fraud referrals received and summarises the outcomes of investigations completed during the 
year to date. 
 
 2019/20 

(As at 19/12/19) 
2019/20 

(Target: Full Year) 
2018/19 

(Full Year) 
% of investigations completed which result in a successful 
outcome (for example benefit stopped or amended, sanctions, 
prosecutions). 

59% 30% 39% 

Amount of actual savings (quantifiable savings - e.g. 
repayment of loss and stopping ongoing fraudulent claims) 
identified through fraud investigation. 

£12,155 £16,000 £19,908 

 
 
Caseload figures for the period are: 
 2019/20 

(As at 19/12/19) 
2018/19 

(Full Year) 
Referrals received 49 66 
Referrals rejected 24 20 
Number of cases under investigation 21 241 
Number of investigations completed 17 28 
 
 

                                                
1 As at 31/3/19 

P
age 28



Summary of counter fraud activity: 
 
Activity 
 

Work completed or in progress 

Data matching The 2018/19 National Fraud Initiative is almost complete.  The exercise identified some error but no fraud was 
detected.  Data is currently being gathered and sent to the NFI by council staff as part of the 2019/20 NFI 
Single Person Discount review. 
 

Fraud detection 
and investigation 

The service continues to use criminal investigation techniques and standards to respond to any fraud 
perpetrated against the council.  Activity to date includes the following: 

• Council Tax Support fraud – In 2019/20 to date the team has received 19 referrals for possible CTS fraud.  
There are currently 10 cases under investigation. Two warnings have been issued in this area. £5.6k of 
savings has been identified through CTS fraud investigation. 
 

• Council Tax fraud – Thirty referrals for council tax fraud have been received to date.  There are currently 
10 cases under investigation.  £6.5k of savings has been identified through council tax fraud investigations 
in the current financial year.  One false claim for single person discount was detected due to information 
received from a single person discount review conducted by Datatank.  The investigation found that the 
person referred for investigation had falsely claimed the discount for more than two years, receiving over 
£1200 that they weren’t entitled to.  The perpetrator admitted the offence and accepted a caution.  One 
further caution and three warnings have been issued this year to date. 

 
• NNDR fraud – No business rate fraud referrals have been received this year. There is however one case 

currently under investigation that was referred in 2018/19. 
 

• Internal fraud – No internal fraud referrals have been received in 2019/20 to date. 
 

Fraud Liaison 
 
 
 

In May 2019, the DWP began new joint working arrangements with councils in the Yorkshire and Humber 
region.  Joint working involves council fraud investigation officers working with DWP counterparts to investigate 
benefit fraud that affects both organisations.  There have been no joint working cases instigated for the council 
to date. 

P
age 29



Activity 
 

Work completed or in progress 

Fraud 
Management 
 
 
 
 

In 2019/20 a range of activity has been undertaken to support the Council’s counter fraud framework. 
 

• The counter fraud team alerts council departments to emerging local and national threats through a 
monthly bulletin and specific alerts over the course of the year. 

 
• In May, the council’s counter fraud transparency data was updated to include data on counter fraud 

performance in 2018/19 meeting the council’s obligation under the Local Government Transparency 
Code 2015. 
 

• The council participated in the annual CIPFA Counter Fraud and Corruption Tracker (CFaCT) survey in 
June 2019.  The information contributes to an annual CIPFA report which aims to provide a national 
picture of fraud, bribery and corruption in the public sector and the actions being taken to prevent it. 
 

• In September, the counter fraud team and the council’s communication team ran a cybercrime 
awareness week, delivering cybercrime awareness information to council employees and the public 
through a number of bulletins and tweets put out over the course of the week.  
 

• In October, the counter fraud team delivered two training sessions for council staff alerting them to the 
current risk of fraud against the council. 
 

• In November, as part of International Fraud Awareness week the counter fraud team and the council’s 
communications team worked together to raise awareness of fraud internally and with the public. 
 
 

 

P
age 30



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report To: Audit, Governance and Standards Committee 
  28 January 2020 
 
From: Director of Finance and Commercial (s151 Officer) 
 
Subject: STATUTORY AUDITOR – QUARTERLY BRIEFING 
 

All Wards 
 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND: 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide Ernst & Young LLP’s most recent sector update 

quarterly briefing paper for information, which is attached at Annex A. 
 
 
 
2.0 RISK MANAGEMENT: 
 
2.1 There are no risks associated with approving the recommendation.   
 
 
 
3.0 RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
3.1 It is recommended that Members note the Ernst & Young LLP’s Local Government audit 

committee briefing. 
 
 
 
 
LOUISE BRANFORD-WHITE 
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND COMMERCIAL (s151 Officer) 
 
 
Background papers:  None  
 
Author ref:   LBW 
 
Contact:   Louise Branford-White  
    Director of Finance and Commercial (s151 Officer) 
    Direct Line No: (01609) 767024 

Page 31

Agenda Item 7



Local Government 
Audit Committee 
Briefing

Quarter 4, December 2019

Annex A

Page 32



Contents 
at a glance

Page 33



1Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

This sector briefing is one of 
the ways that we support you 
and your organisation in an 
environment that is constantly 
changing and evolving.
It covers issues which may have an impact on your organisation and 
the Local Government sector as a whole.

The briefings are produced by our national Government and Public 
Sector (GPS) team, using our public sector knowledge, and EY’s 
wider expertise across UK and international business. 

The briefings bring together not only technical issues relevant to 
the Local Government sector but also wider matters of potential 
interest to you and your organisation.

Links to where you can find out more on any of the articles featured 
can be found at the end of the briefing. 

We hope that you find the briefing informative and should this raise 
any issues that you would like to discuss further please contact 
your local audit team.

Page 34



Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

EY Club item

Economic forecast — EY Club item 

The latest EY ITEM Club forecast highlights that continued 
uncertainties — including those surrounding Brexit — and the 
weak economic global environment continue to weigh on the UK 
economy post the General Election. Fiscal policy will be more 
supportive than previously planned, with the 2020/21 spending 
review indicating that public spending will rise by 4.1% in real 
terms. This briefing considers the prospects for social care funding 
and the housing crisis.

The EY ITEM Club anticipates that continued Brexit 
uncertainty will restrict UK economic growth in 2020

The EY ITEM Club’s autumn forecast predicts relatively weak UK 
GDP growth of just 1.0% in 2020. This reflects an assumption that 
the UK will leave the EU at the end of January with Boris Johnson’s 
withdrawal agreement, in addition to the fact that uncertainty 

2

Government and 
economic news

around the UK’s future relationship with the EU remains. This is 
likely to limit any recovery in business investment in the immediate 
future. Geopolitical and trade pressures weighing on the global 
economy are also likely to cause a drag on the UK economy.

UK GDP growth for 2019 remains on track to be 1.3% in 2019, in 
line with past EY ITEM Club forecasts and representing a slight 
decline on the 1.4% figure for 2018. By comparison, 1.0% in 2020 
would be a significant decline, and this is likely to have important 
consequences for local government.

Local authorities will likely need to continue to be 
innovative to deliver high quality social care

Chancellor Sajid Javid has pledged public spending increases of 
4.1% in real terms in the 2020/21 spending review — the fastest 
increase in 15 years — whilst it is anticipated that the Budget for 
2020/21 will contain further fiscal loosening measures. Austerity 
to the extent of the past decade appears to be at an end.

Page 35



3Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

Despite this, the Conservative manifesto pledges maintaining the 
£1bn of grant funding announced in the last spending review for 
the duration of the next parliament as well as £500mn of funding 
for potholes (in contrast with an extra £13bn proposed by the 
Labour manifesto).

The Conservative manifesto is light on detail on social care reform 
that has been anticipated in the continuously delayed green paper. 
On top of the maintenance of the £1bn of grant funding, they 
refer to the need for more staff, better infrastructure and a new 
entitlement to an extra week of leave for people undertaking care 
on an unpaid basis. But this falls short of a long-term solution, 
which the Conservatives have stated needs to come from cross-
party consensus. It also does not indicate how the manifesto 
commitment that ‘no one needing care has to sell their home to 
pay for it’ will be achieved.1

Until more clarity emerges in this regard, local authorities may 
continue to be financially and operationally squeezed in their 
delivery of social care. This is compounded by the fact that there 
were 136,000 job vacancies in the health and social work sector 
(17% of all UK vacancies),2 whilst labour markets remain tight, 
with unemployment of 3.9% just one percentage point above 

48%

46%

44%

42%

40%

38%

Figure 1: UK public sector spending (% of GDP)

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

Past spending

Conservative manifesto (forecast)
Labour manifesto (forecast) 

Sources: Office for Budget Responsibility; BBC

the joint-lowest level since 1974. Despite this, continued funding 
constraints will mean that badly needed wage growth in the sector 
is unlikely to materialise to a great extent in the next year, even 
given recent strong economy-wide wage growth. Furthermore, 
UK wide productivity remains low, with Q2 2019 being the fourth 
consecutive quarter without growth.

The housing crisis remains a major pressure on 
local government

The latest RICS survey indicated that average housing stock 
levels on estate agents’ books in September were close to the 
lowest level in the survey’s history. Housing market activity is also 
forecast to remain below the 2016 peak until at least 2023. The 
Government’s initiatives to boost house building will take time 
to have a significant effect, so are unlikely to markedly influence 
housing availability in the short term at least. In addition, the 
proportion of new houses that will be affordable must also be 
seen as a significant measure as to the effectiveness of central 
government policy dealing with the housing crisis.

Local authorities therefore continue to take up the mantle in 
combating the crisis, with 78% of councils having a housing or 
property company as of March 2019. Councils are finding different 
ways of delivering, developing their own land in some cases and 
making acquisitions in others, working with different types of 
partners and providers, and applying focus to affordable housing 
and various specific-need groups (such as the elderly).3

Certainty elusive as Brexit continues to dominate the 
political agenda

The Conservatives’ primary election campaign promise to ‘Get 
Brexit Done’ only represents the beginning of a long process of 
trade deal negotiations, both with the EU and other third partners. 
The Government has stated its intention to negotiate a deal with 
the EU next year, not extending the implementation period beyond 
2020. That said, the delays to the withdrawal agreement process 
suggest that it is difficult to guarantee this. Furthermore, the 
Government plans to agree new free trade agreements to cover 
80% of UK trade over the next three years.1 Economic and political 
uncertainty are therefore likely to remain prominent during this 
period, if not beyond.

1 The Telegraph, ‘Conservative Party manifesto 2019’, 10 December 2019, [online]. Available at: https://www.telegraph.co.uk/politics/2019/12/10/conservative-manifesto-
2019-nhs-election/

2 Office for National Statistics, ‘Vacancies and jobs in the UK’, 12 November 2019, [online]. Available at: https://www.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/
peopleinwork/employmentandemployeetypes/bulletins/jobsandvacanciesintheuk/november2019

3 Inside Housing, ‘Councils are finding their building confidence’, 15 March 2019, [online]. Available at: https://www.insidehousing.co.uk/sponsored/sponsored/councils-are-
finding-their-building-confidence?

Page 36



4 Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

Central government is therefore likely to remain focused on 
international trade and relations over the next few years. It will 
become increasingly important for local government to continue 
to play a leading role in society, delivering vital services for 
local residents. There is little in the EY ITEM Club’s forecasts to 
suggest that the economy will provide much support in meeting 
these challenges.

The need for innovation to improve the social 
care system’s capacity

The lead up to the UK election saw all major political parties 
making proposed commitments to expand social care. The newly 
elected Conservative government has stated that the social care 
system needs to ‘give every person the dignity and security they 
deserve’. Aside from a commitment to maintain the extra £1bn of 
grant funding, there has been little further detail about what social 
care reform may happen in the term of the Parliament.

This financial commitment contributes, albeit probably not 
sufficiently, to the proposed funding gap. However, funding in the 
social care system is not the only shortfall; recent research by the 
Nuffield Trust has suggested there are 165,000 over 65s with 
unmet care needs and providing these with just two hours of care 
a day would require 90,000 new home care workers. This doesn’t 
consider any other forms of social care, such as adults with special 
or complex needs. Therefore, the shortfall of 90,000 care workers 
is likely to be a prudent figure.

Successful expansion of the social care system will be 
heavily influenced by macroeconomic conditions.

Any expansion of the social care system in the UK will need careful 
consideration of the existing conditions in the labour market. 
The current unemployment rate of 3.9% stands at near record 
low levels. However, despite nominal wage growth standing at 
its highest rate since 2008, real wage growth remains near zero. 
These conditions will make it challenging to expand the workforce 
of the social care system without significantly increasing spending 
or looking for alternative means of delivery.

It is possible to establish an economically sustainable 
social care system.

There are examples of successful social care system 
transformations from across the globe that provide insightful 
lessons for potential reform in the UK’s social care system.

In 2013, the Australian Government introduced a universal social 
care system referred to as the National Disability Insurance 
Scheme (NDIS). The NDIS entitles people with a ‘permanent and 
significant’ disability (under the age of 65), to full funding for 
‘any reasonable and necessary’ support needs relating to their 
disability (subject to certain restrictions). Funding is allocated to 
the individual, and the individual or their guardian chooses which 
providers supply the funded goods and services (subject to other 
restrictions). The scheme is entirely publicly funded.

Research commissioned by the Australian Government in 2011, 
found that by approximately 2025 the cost of maintaining the 
status quo in relation to the care of people with a disability would 
be greater than the cost of an NDIS. The status quo heavily relied 
on a fragmented funding system of grants that offered little long-
term security for those with disabilities. A broken system was 
deemed to be constraining those with special needs’ ability and 
the ability of their carers to participate in Australian society. Other 
downstream costs of the status quo included those seen in the 
criminal justice system, health system, homelessness and costs 
relating to social isolation.

Expanding social care requires innovation and careful 
consideration of labour supply and community needs.

There was a clear need to overhaul the social care system in 
Australia, however it meant the disability sector in Australia would 
need to double its workforce to meet the needs of the NDIS. 
Consultations on the NDIS to date have highlighted several key 
issues that would be of important consideration in the proposed 
expansion of social care in the UK:

• Vulnerable clients: the communities that some providers 
serve may have complex and more pressing needs, including 
isolation, complex disability support and challenges in self- 
determining their needs. These clients require more highly 
qualified staff to service their needs.

Page 37



5Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

The EY ITEM Club forecast for the UK economy, autumn 2019

% changes on previous year

GDP Domestic 
demand

Consumer 
spending

Fixed 
investment

Exports Imports

2017 1.9 1.2 2.2 1.6 6.1 3.5

2018 1.4 1.4 1.6 -0.1 -0.9 0.7

2019 (forecast) 1.3 2.3 1.2 -0.3 -0.1 4.3

2020 (forecast) 1 0.8 1.4 -0.4 1.1 0.3

2021 (forecast) 1.5 1.8 1.8 2.7 2.5 3.1

2022 (forecast) 1.7 2 1.9 2.3 3.2 3.8

2023 (forecast) 1.8 2 2 2.6 3.5 3.7

• Higher operating costs: low client numbers (or difficulty in 
finding connection with clients that are in a region), and/or 
highly dispersed clients result in high per-client costs under 
existing staff utilisation.

• Workforce: challenges in recruiting and retaining qualified 
workers as well as providing learning and development 
opportunities.

• Temporary supply gaps during transition: temporary supply 
gaps during transition to full implementation of the scheme, 
where some supports (such as certain specialist supports and 
Allied Health services) take time to reach levels required to 
meet demand.

• Geographic isolation: physical distance and travel time 
results in high costs for service delivery for isolated or highly 
dispersed communities.

Many of these challenges would likely impact any proposed 
expansion of the social care workforce in the UK too. Focus should 
therefore be applied to mitigating these during the formation of 
any associated policy. However, what else should be considered in 
the need to expand social care?

The need to improve capacity

The call to expand the social care system pertains to the current 
and growing challenge of lack of capacity in the system. Whilst 
expanding the workforce is one means to try and tackle this, so is 
improving productivity. Where significant workforce challenges 
exist, then focusing on technologically enabled productivity gains 
is likely to be crucial.

There are a range of opportunities through which technology has 
the potential to improve the productivity of the social care system:

• Managing front-door demand: predictive analytics can now 
be used to identify risk and vulnerable groups to proactively 
target interventions before demand materialises.

• Making existing service delivery for staff more efficient: 
Robotic Process Automation (RPA) and Artificial Intelligence 
(AI) applications provide improved productive capacity 
and flexibility for staff through streamlined processes and 
automated administration tasks, allowing staff to focus on 
supporting user needs.

• Technology-enabled care: assistive technology provides a 
vehicle to personalise and tailor support, reducing intrusion 
whilst providing a platform for connectivity and care, such as 
virtual reality empathy training, real time care monitoring and 
work flowed predictive analytics.

• Procurement and commissioning: data driven decision 
making through predictive analytics, digital care planning and 
eBrokerage now provides an effective platform for evidence- 
based outcome-focused commissioning.

It is vital that any proposed expansion of the social care system 
doesn’t purely focus on increasing the number of social care 
workers. The system needs fundamental transformations in its 
digital infrastructure and it is through the productivity gains that 
can be yielded from those, that the system can best overcome its 
capacity challenges.

Page 38



6 Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

Future Funding for Vital Services
Research conducted by the Institute for Fiscal Studies (IFS) has 
predicted that council tax revenues will significantly fall short 
of the funding required to provide key services, including social 
care. If council tax revenues increase at their current rate in line 
with inflation at 2% then this would result in a shortfall of £4bn 
by 2024/25, rising to £18bn by the mid-2030s. An increase in 
council tax by 4% per year would still result in a shortfall of £1.6bn 
by 2024/25 and £8.7bn by 2034/35. There have been calls within 
the local authority sector to significantly reform and address the 
issue of long-term sustainable funding for social care.

The research has also concluded that councils have cut other 
services by up to 40% since 2010 in order to protect social care 
spending. Local authority budgets are under significant pressure 
due to a decade of funding cuts from central government and 
increased cost pressures from increased demand for services. 
The IFS has found that budgets of local authorities are increasingly 
focused on fulfilling statutory duties and focusing spending on 
those that need it the most, as opposed to providing equitable 
services to all. This has resulted in significant cuts to a range 
of services previously provided by local authorities that are not 
required under statute. For example, per-person spending on 
culture and recreation is 50% lower in 2019/20 compared to 
2009/10.

Similar analysis conducted by the Trade Union Congress has 
found that funding for key local services related to social care, 
waste management and transport have fallen by, on average, 
16% since 2010. There were significant regional variations with 
the North East and North West regions showing a fall of 20% 
compared to 2010 levels, whilst some metropolitan boroughs in 
London had a 30% decrease.

Local authorities have become increasingly more reliant on council 
tax and business rates income. Excluding educational spend, half 
of all spending is funded from council tax whilst 30% of spend is 
funded from business rates. With reform of business rate retention 
and Fair Funding reviews on the horizon, it is likely that councils 
will become even more reliant on council tax and business rate 
income. Consequently, authorities with a smaller tax base may find 
that their sources of revenue fall behind neighbouring authorities 
with a larger tax base. 

Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) Interest Rate 
Increase 
On 9 October 2019 HM Treasury announced a 1% interest 
rate increase for all new PWLB loans with immediate effect. 
The Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local 
Government noted that this was a necessary step to control 
the increase and dependency on PWLB borrowing. Total PWLB 
borrowing increased by 72% from 2017/18 to 2018/19 to £9.1bn 
new loans across all local authorities before this interest rate hike. 

A spokesman from the Local Government Association (LGA) 
has commented that this PWLB rate increase could cost 
councils an extra £70mn a year. This may put at risk many vital 
capital schemes, including the construction of much needed 
council houses, which may now be delayed or cancelled due to 
unaffordability. The London Councils umbrella group have also 
indicated that the interest rate increase is likely to have a ‘severe 
impact’ on housing and regeneration schemes.

The credit rating agency Moody’s has commented that the PWLB 
interest rate increase is overall ‘credit negative’ for the sector 
as the cost of capital for local authorities on new borrowing 
will increase in the short term. However, in the long term, the 
increase in interest rates should reduce the overall level of debt 
accumulated in the sector. 

Moody’s have also predicted that the rate hike will deter some 
councils from borrowing to invest in commercial property schemes 
with marginal returns. This comes as the chief executive of the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA), 
Rob Whiteman, has commented that central government has 
concerns on the types of commercial property investments 
entered into by local authorities. Some of which are controversial 
due to the scale of borrowing and the increase in exposure to 
economic volatility for local authorities. He warned that ‘the PWLB 
[interest rate] hike was a very blunt instrument’ and does not 
help the sector as whole. However, if controversial commercial 
investments continue within the sector then it is likely that central 
government will impose greater regulation upon local authorities, 
or even sanctions if CIPFA’s Prudential Code is not adhered to.

The initial impact of the interest rate increase on PWLB loan 
borrowing has suggested that the value of new loans drawn 
down in October 2019 has decreased by 71% compared to 
September 2019. In response to interest rate hike councillors 
and mayors from multiple London Boroughs have written to the 
Chancellor of the Exchequer calling on him to reverse the increase.

Page 39



7Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

Page 40



8 Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

Accounting, 
auditing and 
governance

Going Concern 
In response to recent well-publicised corporate failures, the 
Financial Reporting Council (FRC), the regulator of external 
auditors, has issued a revised standard on going concern, 
International Standard on Auditing (‘ISA’) (UK) 570. The revised 
standard is effective for audits of financial statements for periods 
commencing on or after 15 December 2019 (e.g., the 2020/21 
accounts), with early adoption possible. 

The uncertain economic environment, risks arising from Brexit 
and weakness in the retail sector due to falling consumer spending 
mean increasing risks around going concern in the corporate 
sector. These risks are also prevalent, to a lesser extent, in local 
government. Public interest expectations around the work of 
auditors on going concern, and the FRC’s expectations on how we 
robustly challenge management, have also never been higher. 

The revised standard increases the work auditors are required to 
perform when assessing whether an entity is a going concern. 
As a starting point, the expectation of the regulator is that there 
are going concern uncertainties in every business which must 
be identified by the auditor, before a robust consideration of 
management’s assessment is carried out. This requires auditors 
to perform: 

• An enhanced risk assessment to inform the auditor’s challenge 
of management’s identification of events or conditions 
impacting going concern, more specific requirements to test 
management’s resulting assessment of going concern, an 

evaluation of the supporting evidence obtained which includes 
consideration of the risk of management bias:

• If we identify events or conditions that management 
did not, further procedures are required including 
consideration of control weaknesses and risk of fraud.

• The testing of management’s method of assessment, 
assumptions, the relevance and reliability of data, 
management’s future actions and events since 
management’s assessment are more explicitly described in 
the new standard, although many of the required steps will 
reflect current best practice.

• The evaluation of evidence when we draw our conclusions 
on going concern includes a stand back requirement to 
consider all the evidence obtained (whether corroborative 
or contradictory) and consideration of management bias 
even if all judgements and assumptions are individually 
reasonable.

• Financial statement disclosures around going concern now 
need to be considered for ‘appropriateness’ not ‘adequacy’.

• Extended requirements to report to regulators where we have 
concerns about going concern.

Your local audit team will provide further details later in 2020 on 
what these changes might mean for the work management must 
perform on going concern and the expectations of the audit team.

Page 41



9Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

Public Sector Audit Consultations
There are two recent consultations which may change the shape 
of public sector financial reporting and auditing. These are:

• Independent review into the arrangements in place to support 
the transparency and quality of local authority financial 
reporting and external audit in England (Call for Views) led by 
Sir Tony Redmond; and 

• Local audit in England — Code of Audit Practice — Draft Code 
Consultation led by the National Audit Office (NAO Code). 

We believe reforms should be guided by the following principles:

• Reforms should enhance, or at least should not create risks to, 
the quality of financial reporting and external audit

• The importance of the multidisciplinary audit firm model, to 
enable local auditors to respond efficiently and effectively 
to the increased reporting complexity and risks facing public 
sector bodies

• There should not be a two-tier system of generally accepted 
accounting and auditing standards between the public and 
corporate sectors; and

• To be effective and sustainable, reforms need to focus on the 
public sector financial reporting and external audit ecosystem 
as a whole (e.g., public bodies governance, controls, reporting 
and auditing). This should include changes to how local 
auditors conduct and report on local public bodies’ Value for 
Money arrangements.

We also believe that increased transparency of reporting to local 
taxpayers and other users of accounts is needed to improve 
the effectiveness of local public bodies’ corporate governance, 
financial position, risk appetite and rationale for significant 
decisions. 

The Call for Views and changes to the NAO Code comes at a time 
of significant scrutiny of the UK audit market and profession. We 
believe it is crucial that the outcomes from the Call for Views, 
and the finalisation of the NAO Code, is closely aligned with the 
outcome of these various reviews. 

We have responded to both consultations and are committed to 
work with Sir Tony Redmond, the UK government and the NAO 
in support of improving the transparency and sustainability of 
public sector financial reporting and external audit. In our next 
briefing, we will share the key messages in our responses to both 
consultations. We encourage Audit Committees to be aware of 
and contribute its views to these important consultations and 
developments and your Engagement Lead will be happy to discuss 
these matters with you.

CIPFA Publications: Financial Management and 
Commercial Investments 
On 11 October 2019 CIPFA launched its first financial 
management code in 15 years. The financial management Code 
(FM Code) is designed to help officers navigate the increasing 
complex issues of public sector finance, including financial 
sustainability. The FM Code requires all local authorities, 
including police, fire and other authorities, to demonstrate that 
the processes they have in place satisfy the principles of good 
financial management. The FM Code identifies risks to financial 
sustainability, introduces a framework of assurance and sets 
explicit standards of financial management. Complying with the 
standards set out in the FM Code is the collective responsibility 
of elected members, the chief finance officer and the leadership 
team. Ultimately the FM code aims at improving financial decision 
making. 

The FM Code is built on elements of other CIPFA codes and 
applicability will be familiar to users of publications such as The 
Prudential Code for Capital Finance, Treasury Management in 
the Public Sector Code of Practice and Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom. 

CIPFA chief executive, Rob Whiteman, said that “CIPFA’s ambition 
was to embed good financial management as an organisational 
responsibility … and move towards a sense of collective 
responsibility when it comes to finance.” The National Audit Office 
Auditor General, Gareth Davies, welcomed the new financial 
management code as it will help local authorities to improve their 
standards of financial management and cope with the financial 
challenges they are facing. 

CIPFA has also issued new guidance for local authorities on what 
is expected from them when commercial property investments are 
made. The institute has warned that authorities must not borrow 
more than, or in advance of, their needs purely in the interest 
of profit. The cornerstone of this new guidance, published on 
15 November 2019, is that under the prudential framework local 
authorities should not put public money and services at risk to 
the extent that an investment bank or commercial investor may 
legitimately do with their shareholders’ funds. 

Page 42



10 Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

Other news

Green Revolution
Although 230 English councils have declared climate emergencies 
over the past year, there has been a slow rollout of industrial 
strategies and policies to implement clean growth development 
opportunities. Climate action groups are calling on a proportion 
of the UK Share Prosperity Fund to be ringfenced for climate 
projects that enable clean growth. This would assist the 
Government to achieve its net zero carbon target by 2050 through 
implementation of local schemes. The Green Alliance’s head 
of policy has called on local policy makers to put clean growth 
at the heart of local industry strategies to attract industries of 
the future and to enable local resilience in a world affected by 
climate change.

The Friends of the Earth group have analysed and ranked each 
local authority based on their green credentials. The group is 
calling on all local authorities to do more to combat climate 
change, including improving the energy efficiency standards of 
new build homes. A poll by Unison and ComRes suggests that 
if councils were to receive increased funding, 39% of the public 
would like additional money to be spent on prioritising refuse 
and recycling. 

The LGA’s environmental spokesperson has suggested that a 
joint national task force led by councils should be set up to drive 

initiatives to make councils more climate friendly. The LGA has also 
indicated that national climate change targets are unlikely to be 
achieved unless councils are given long term funding and devolved 
powers to combat climate change. The chair of the County Council 
Network has called on the government to engage with local 
authorities to provide genuine devolution and sustainable funding 
framework. 

EY audit quality and transparency reports 
This year, for the first time, EY is publishing a UK Audit Quality 
Report alongside our UK Transparency Report and both reports 
are now available on ey.com. 

As our profession continues to face scrutiny, we believe it is vital 
that we are as open and transparent as possible. Together these 
reports aim to achieve this by setting out how we’re addressing 
our public interest responsibilities and delivering high quality 
audits. 

Our Audit Quality Report sets out the actions we’ve taken over the 
last five years to improve audit quality and, importantly, those that 
we will focus on in the future. We hope that by sharing the details 
of our long-term and future investment plans with you, this will 
instil confidence in our commitment to quality. 

Page 43



11Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

Audit Quality
We understand our role in society is to serve the public interest. 
Delivering consistently high quality audits is how we play our part 
in restoring and sustaining confidence. A commitment to audit 
quality starts at the top of the organisation. EY leaders set a clear 
tone from the top by promoting, maintaining and demonstrating 
a culture based on a commitment to quality, integrity, and 
collaboration. 

It is also critical that we create an environment where our teams 
are supported to deliver high-quality audits. We have established 
the Audit Quality Board (‘AQB’) to take a lead in setting this tone 
and we hold regular events and issue communications to reinforce 
a priority on audit quality. 

The importance of setting the right expectations for all our audit 
teams is why ‘tone at the top’ is the first pillar of our Sustainable 
Audit Quality (‘SAQ’) programme. 

We have already made significant investments to improve audit 
quality over the last five years through our SAQ programme. 
We began this programme in 2014 when we set up the UK AQB 
and our Audit Quality Support Team and launched annual Audit 
Quality Summits for our partners and senior staff. Since then, our 
approach to partner and staff remuneration has been focused 
on ensuring audit quality is reinforced as a critical factor in 
determining pay awards. 

Our investment in audit quality is now £25mn a year higher than 
in 2014; however, we recognise that there remains more to do. 
We will continue to invest to meet the expectations of all our 
stakeholders and society as a whole.

Exceptional Talent
The competition for talented people with the right mindset to 
deliver high-quality audits has never been higher. As a result, 
the profession continues to face challenges with recruiting and 
retaining the right number of people with the right skills. This 
has been exacerbated by the increased demands and pressures 
that the profession is facing in the current environment. We are 
committed to attracting, developing, inspiring and retaining 
outstanding audit professionals and promoting an inclusive culture 
for them to be able to deliver to the best of their abilities. We have 
been recruiting, and continue to recruit, across our business and 
aim to deliver an exceptional experience for our people throughout 
the recruitment process their career. 

Accountability
Society as a whole and our regulators rightly expect us to be 
accountable for the work we perform. Without this accountability 
being recognised and responded to at all levels in the audit 
process, we will not achieve the improvements we need to make 
in delivering consistently high quality audits. We believe that, 
as auditors, we are accountable not just to ourselves, but to 
our teams, our organisation, our stakeholders and the public 
interest. We have embedded a culture of accountability at all 
levels of the audit process, whilst also providing the support 
necessary for our people to take responsibility for their work. We 
are further reinforcing the importance of accountability through 
the SAQ programme, our quality ratings and our partners’ 
performance evaluations. Monitoring our audit performance and 
the effectiveness of our actions to improve audit quality is a key 
part of our system of quality control and the activities of the AQB, 
ensuring that we hold ourselves fully accountable for the quality of 
work we do.

Audit Technology and Digital
The extent to which the entities we audit create and use data has 
increased significantly. This generates a unique opportunity to 
drive greater assurance and hence improve audit quality through 
the appropriate analysis of this data. During the past five years, 
we have been undergoing an unprecedented transformation in 
our capability to leverage and interrogate the data created by the 
entities we audit and in improving our own technology supporting 
the audit process. This allows us to increase audit quality not only 
through improved data analysis, but also through using technology 
to improve project management, timely review and resolution of 
issues identified in our audits. 

To take advantage of the opportunities offered by innovative 
technologies in every EY audit, we have transformed EY’s Global 
Audit Methodology (GAM) to put data at the heart of the audit. 
Known as EY Digital GAM, this new approach has been piloted 
in 2019 and will be phased in globally from 2020. Digital GAM is 
powered by our digital audit technology, using this to embed data 
analysis and automated techniques in all phases of the audit. It 
also simplifies certain tasks and improves linkage from one audit 
procedure to another. 

Page 44



12 Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

This updated methodology will further enhance audit quality 
through:

• The standardising or automating of routine audit tasks, 
enabling teams to focus on identified anomalies or higher risk 
judgemental aspects of the audit; and

• Providing greater clarity on the risks inherent in an 
organisation, driving a more focused audit approach.

Simplification and innovation
A natural response to regulatory inspection findings and the 
pressures we face to deliver the highest quality audits is to do 
more and more work; however, if this is not targeted in the 
right areas or effectively performed, it can actually be counter-
productive. The quality of our audits is improved where we can 
also deliver simplification and innovation in the way we perform 
and document our work. In a world of ever-increasing complexity 
and data availability, we have innovated our audit technologies 
and approach — not only to stay ahead of these changes, but also 
to use them to our advantage and improve audit quality. Where 
possible, we have also used this opportunity to simplify our work, 
giving our audit teams greater clarity on key risks and increased 
time to focus on these.

Enablement and Quality Support
The complexity of the organisations we audit continues to 
increase, making risk assessment and key audit judgements 
ever more difficult. At the same time, the expectations of all our 
stakeholders for us to perform high-quality audits and provide 
trust and confidence also increases. We have to ensure that we 
have the right support for our audit teams to help them address 
complexity, challenge management appropriately and document 
our judgements clearly. We have always provided, and continue 
to provide, technical accounting and risk management support 

to our audit teams as required. Since 2014 we have significantly 
increased the level of support provided to individual audit teams, 
particularly those on our most challenging and complex audits. 
This includes coaching programmes and coaching kits, as well as 
other processes designed to improve audit quality. Importantly, 
we also routinely monitor audit quality indicators and have in place 
processes to learn quickly from both positive and negative quality 
outcomes.

There is no doubt we are in challenging times and there is 
uncertainty ahead. Our main focus will continue to be on delivering 
high-quality audits and we have every confidence that the steps 
we have taken, and those we plan to make, to deliver audit quality 
are the right ones. We will continue to support our audit teams 
through the investment in technology, processes and, most of all, 
in our people. Our purpose must be to deliver audits of the highest 
quality and provide confidence to the capital markets and other 
stakeholders. 

Our Transparency Report, meanwhile, sets out what we do as a 
firm, how we’re structured and governed, how we manage risk and 
comply with regulation, and how we performed in FY19. During 
the year we established our Audit Risk Committee, to expand 
our risk-scanning processes on audits. The goal is to ensure 
that we appropriately identify high risk clients and sectors and 
tailor our approach to them. Looking ahead to 2020, we have a 
number of priority areas which include additional investment in 
people, increasing the scope of our Audit Quality Support Team, 
championing new ideas and innovation and enhancing our focus 
on promoting the desired culture and behaviours for audit quality. 

We hope these reports offer a useful means to assess our policies 
and processes for maintaining independence and complying with 
relevant standards and regulations. 

Page 45



13Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

Key Questions for the Audit Committee
Future Funding for Vital Services

What is the largest cost pressure or funding gap for your 
authority? What actions are your authority taking to address 
future budget gaps in the medium to long term?

To what extent is your authority reliant on its tax based to fund 
services?

Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) Interest Rate 
Increase

What impact has the PWLB interest rate increase had on your 
authority? Has your authority reviewed the continuing financial 
viability of its commercial investments?

How does your authority intent to achieve its capital strategy 
objectives considering the PWLB interest rate increase? 

Going Concern 

Have you discussed with your auditors what impact the revised 
standard on going concern will have on your consideration of 
going concern and the changes to your audit?

Public Sector Audit Consultations

Did your authority participate in the public sector audit 
consultations? 

What reforms do you believe are key to the future 
sustainability of public sector financial reporting and auditing? 

CIPFA Publications: Financial Management and 
Commercial Investments 

How has your authority adopted and implemented CIPFA’s 
new Financial Management code?

What impact does CIPFA’s guidance on commercial property 
investments have for your authority? Do the authority’s 
commercial activities place the public’s money at risk?

Green Revolution

How does your authority’s local industrial strategy enable 
clean growth?

What action is your authority taking to combat climate 
change? How does your authority plan to achieve the net zero 
carbon target by 2050?

EY audit quality and transparency reports 

Have you discussed with your auditors the benefits of a 
digital audit?

Page 46



14 Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

Find out more
Future Funding for Vital Services
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/11/major-gap-
between-council-revenue-and-funding-needed-says-ifs

https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/2019/11/ifs-councils-sacrificing-
other-services-protect-social-care

Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) Interest Rate 
Increase
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/10/increased-pwlb-
interest-rate-rise-puts-capital-projects-jeopardy

https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/11/whiteman-
councils-risky-commercial-deals-could-prompt-increased-
regulation

Going Concern
https://www.iaasb.org/publications-resources/international-
standard-auditing-isa-570-revised-going-concern

Public Sector Audit Consultations
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/code-of-audit-
practice-consultation/

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/call-for-views-for-
independent-review-into-local-authority-audit

CIPFA Publications: Financial Management and 
Commercial Investments 
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/f/
financial-management-code

https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/10/cipfa-unveils-
financial-management-code

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/p/
prudential-property-investment 

Green Revolution
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/10/councils-need-
funding-and-powers-create-greener-local-strategies

https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2019/10/local-authorities-
need-be-more-environmentally-friendly

EY Reports on audit quality and transparency
https://assets.ey.com/content/dam/ey-sites/ey-com/en_uk/about-
us/transparency-report-2019/ey-uk-2019-audit-quality-report.pdf

https://www.ey.com/Publication/vwLUAssets/ey-uk-2019-
transparency-report/$FILE/ey-uk-2019-transparency-report.pdf

Page 47



15Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

Notes

Page 48



16 Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

Notes

Page 49



17Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

Notes

Page 50



About EY
EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction and advisory 
services. The insights and quality services we deliver help build trust 
and confidence in the capital markets and in economies the world 
over. We develop outstanding leaders who team to deliver on our 
promises to all of our stakeholders. In so doing, we play a critical role 
in building a better working world for our people, for our clients and for 
our communities.

EY refers to the global organization, and may refer to one or more, of 
the member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited, each of which is 
a separate legal entity. Ernst & Young Global Limited, a UK company 
limited by guarantee, does not provide services to clients. Information 
about how EY collects and uses personal data and a description of the 
rights individuals have under data protection legislation is available via 
ey.com/privacy. For more information about our organization, please 
visit ey.com.

Ernst & Young LLP
The UK firm Ernst & Young LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales 

with registered number OC300001 and is a member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited.

Ernst & Young LLP, 1 More London Place, London, SE1 2AF.

© 2019 Ernst & Young LLP. Published in the UK. 

All Rights Reserved.

ED None

EY-000112960.indd (UK) 12/19. Artwork by Creative Services Group London.

In line with EY’s commitment to minimise its impact on the environment, this document 

has been printed on paper with a high recycled content.

Information in this publication is intended to provide only a general outline of the subjects 

covered. It should neither be regarded as comprehensive nor sufficient for making decisions, nor 

should it be used in place of professional advice. Ernst & Young LLP accepts no responsibility for 

any loss arising from any action taken or not taken by anyone using this material.

ey.com/uk

EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



 
HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report To: Audit, Governance and Standards Committee    
  28 January 2020 
 
From: Director of Finance and Commercial (S151 Officer) 
 
Subject: STATUTORY AUDITOR – ANNUAL CERTIFICATION OF CLAIMS AND 

RETURNS 2018/19  
 

All Wards 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND: 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to present to Members the statutory auditor’s Certification of 

Claims and Returns Annual Report for 2018/19 which is attached at Annex ‘A’.  
 
 1.2 The Report summarises the work which the Council’s statutory auditors have undertaken in 

Quarter 4 2019 certifying the Council’s major grant claims and returns in relation to the 
financial year 2018/19.  In this year the housing benefit subsidy claim is the only item that 
required certification. 

 
 
2.0 RISK ANALYSIS: 
 
2.1 There are no risks associated with consideration of this report.  However, if this report was 

not considered the Committee would not be fulfilling its terms of reference and would not 
have the opportunity of commenting on the statutory auditor’s work in respect of the annual 
certification of claims and returns for 2018/19. 

 
 
3.0 RECOMMENDATION: 
 
3.1 It is recommended that Members receive the statutory auditor’s Certification of Claims and 

Returns Annual Report 2018/19. 
 
 
LOUISE BRANFORD-WHITE 
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND COMMERCIAL (S151 Officer) 
 
Background papers: None 
 
Author ref: LBW 
 
Contact: Louise Branford-White 
 Director of Finance and Commercial (Section 151 Officer) 
 Direct Line No: 767024 
 
 
 
 
280120 Stat Auditor - Annual Grant Claims and Returns 

Page 53

Agenda Item 8



Certification of 
Claims and Returns 
Annual Report 
2018/19
Hambleton District Council

January 2020

P
age 54



2

January 2020

Dear Audit, Governance and Standards Committee Members

Local authorities claim large sums of public money in grants and subsidies from central government and other grant-paying bodies, and must 
complete returns providing financial information to government departments. In some cases, these grant-paying bodies and government 
departments require appropriately qualified reporting accountants to certify the claims and returns submitted to them.

This report summarises the results of our work performed on Hambleton District Council’s housing benefits claim for 2018/19.
We carried out our work in accordance with Housing Benefit Assurance Process (“HBAP”) Module 1 2018/19, issued by the Department for Work 
and Pensions (“DWP”). 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee and management, and is not 
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss this report with you at the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee meeting on 28 January 2020.
Yours faithfully 

Nicola Wright
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Members of the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee

Hambleton District Council

Civic Centre

Stone Cross

Northallerton

DL6 2UU

P
age 55



3

Contents

The contents of this report are subject to the terms and conditions of our appointment as set out in our engagement letter dated 19 November 2019. 

This report is made solely to the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee and management of Hambleton District Council in accordance with the engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so 
that we might state to the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee, and management of Hambleton District Council, those matters we are required to state to them in this report and for no other 
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee, and management of Hambleton District 
Council, for this report or for the opinions we have formed. It should not be provided to any third-party without our prior written consent.

Our Complaints Procedure – If at any time you would like to discuss with us how our service to you could be improved, or if you are dissatisfied with the service you are receiving, you may take the issue up 
with your usual partner or associate partner contact. If you prefer an alternative route, please contact Steve Varley, our Managing Partner, 1 More London Place, London SE1 2AF. We undertake to look 
into any complaint carefully and promptly and to do all we can to explain the position to you. Should you remain dissatisfied with any aspect of our service, you may of course take matters up with our 
professional institute. We can provide further information on how you may contact our professional institute.

Housing benefits 
subsidy claim01

02
2018/19 
certification fees

P
age 56



4

Housing benefits subsidy claim01 01

P
age 57



5

Housing benefits subsidy claim

Findings in 2018/19

Local government administers the government’s housing benefits scheme for tenants and can claim subsidies from the Department for Work and Pensions (“DWP”) 
towards the cost of benefits paid. The HBAP guidance requires reporting accountants to follow a programme of work specified by DWP. 

Detailed case testing is carried out on an initial sample of 20 cases per benefit type.  

More extensive ‘40+’ or extended testing is carried out if the initial testing identifies errors in the calculation of benefit or compilation of the claim. 40+ testing may 
also be carried out as a result of errors that have been identified in the certification of previous years’ claims.

The results were as follows:

• Through our testing of the initial sample we identified two cases which had been incorrectly classified as Local Housing Allowance, when the housing provider was 
a Registered Housing Association, and therefore the expenditure should have been included in a different cell within the claim. As this had no impact on overall 
subsidy claimed, no further work was completed; 

• Through our testing of the initial sample, we identified one case where ineligible service charges had been incorrectly calculated leading to an overpayment of 
benefit of £145.  We tested a further 11 cases and identified a further error in one case of underpayment of benefit;

• Through our additional testing of the 11 cases referenced above, we identified one case where the incorrect rental liability had been used in the calculation which 
resulted in an overpayment of benefit of £120; and

• Our review of reconciling cells identified an error in the completion of the form of £1,000. This error was corrected in the amended claim.

Scope of work Results

Value of claim presented for certification £13,899,669

Amended/Not amended Amended

Fee – 2018/19

Fee – 2017/18

£11,280

£12,177 (fee includes scale fee variation of £891)

P
age 58



6

2018/19 certification fees02 1

P
age 59



7

2018/19 certification fees

Claim or return 2018/19 2017/18

Fee
£

Fee
£

Housing benefits subsidy claim 11,280 *12,177

*For 2017/18, the scale fee was determined by PSAA and includes a variation of £891.P
age 60



EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

About EY
EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction and advisory 
services. The insights and quality services we deliver help build 
trust and confidence in the capital markets and in economies the 
world over. We develop outstanding leaders who team to deliver 
on our promises to all of our stakeholders. In so doing, we play a 
critical role in building a better working world for our people, for 
our clients and for our communities.
EY refers to the global organization, and may refer to one or 
more, of the member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited, each 
of which is a separate legal entity. Ernst & Young Global Limited, a 
UK company limited by guarantee, does not provide services to 
clients. For more information about our organization, please visit 
ey.com.

© 2020 EYGM Limited.
All Rights Reserved.

ED None

This material has been prepared for general informational purposes only and is not 
intended to be relied upon as accounting, tax, or other professional advice. Please refer 
to your advisors for specific advice.

ey.com

P
age 61



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act - Review of Activity
	4 Amendments to Member Code of Conduct and Member Register of Interest Form
	280120 Amendments to Member Code of Conduct and Register of Interests Form
	280120 Amendments to Member Code of Conduct and Register of Interests Form - Annex A
	280120 Amendments to Member Code of Conduct and Register of Interests Form - Annex B
	The interests which are registerable are specified in the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012, to which Members are referred when completing this Register of Interests.  Set out below is an explanation of the nature...
	I hereby notify you of my interests (and those of my spouse, civil partner or persons living with me as if a spouse or civil partner) as required by the Code of Member Conduct as follows:-


	5 Amendments to the Constitution
	6 Second Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Progress Report 2019/20
	280120 Audit and Fraud Progress Reports
	Contacts:  Stuart Cutts; Assistant Director – Internal Audit; Veritau Group
	23TUStuart.Cutts@veritau.co.ukU23T
	23TUJonathan.Dodsworth@veritau.co.ukU23T

	280120 IA Second Progress Report 2019-20  - Annex 1
	Background
	Internal Audit work completed
	Table of 2019/20 audit assignments to 15 December 2019  Appendix A

	Audit work is based on sampling transactions to test the operation of systems. It cannot guarantee the elimination of fraud or error. Our opinion is based on the risks we identify at the time of the audit.
	Our overall audit opinion is based on 5 grades of opinion, as set out below.
	Overall, very good management of risk. An effective control environment appears to be in operation.
	High Assurance
	Overall, good management of risk with few weaknesses identified.  An effective control environment is in operation but there is scope for further improvement in the areas identified.
	Substantial Assurance
	Overall, satisfactory management of risk with a number of weaknesses identified.  An acceptable control environment is in operation but there are a number of improvements that could be made.
	Reasonable Assurance 
	Overall, poor management of risk with significant control weaknesses in key areas and major improvements required before an effective control environment will be in operation.
	Limited Assurance
	Overall, there is a fundamental failure in control and risks are not being effectively managed.  A number of key areas require substantial improvement to protect the system from error and abuse.
	No Assurance
	A fundamental system weakness, which presents unacceptable risk to the system objectives and requires urgent attention by management
	Priority 1
	A significant system weakness, whose impact or frequency presents risks to the system objectives, which needs to be addressed by management.
	Priority 2
	The system objectives are not exposed to significant risk, but the issue merits attention by management.
	Priority 3

	280120 Counter Fraud Second Progress Report 2019-20 - Annex 2
	Background


	7 Statutory Auditor - Quarterly Briefing
	280120 Stat Auditor Qtr Briefing Update
	280120 Stat Auditor Quartlery Update Annex A

	8 Statutory Auditor - Annual Certification of Claims and Returns 2018/19
	280120 Stat Auditor - Annual Grant Claims and Returns
	280120 Housing Benefits Certification Report




